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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Number 4 Engine House is located on the southeast corner of Lincoln and Barker 
Streets, the main entrance being on Lincoln and the long axis of the building 
parallel to Barker. It is a two-story, gable-roofed rectangular structure with 
a four-story hose-drying and observation tower on the northwest corner. A handmade 
brick of cream color is the principal material used in the building. The foundation 
is a dressed yellow sandstone.

Breaking up the exterior wall surface is a grid of brick pilaster strips and belt 
courses. The pilaster strips, each about two feet wide, are spaced irregularly 
except at the northwest corner where they define the vertical mass of the tower, 
and on the east elevation where one bisects the angle of the gable and the other 
two define the corners. Between the first and second floors and above the second 
level, a belt course of about a foot in width and at the same surface level as 
the pilaster strips runs completely around the building. There is a two-brick 
corbel above and below the belt courses.

The recessed panels between the pilasters are punctured, where needed, by tall, 
narrow, segmentally-arched windows with two-over-two panes in double-hung sash. 
Windows and doors on each level are arched at the same height.

The west and principle elevation of the firehouse has a parapet above the second 
level which rises at a 45-degree angle from the southwestern corner and then cuts 
back to horizontal to meet the tower wall. Within the recessed surface of this 
parapet are two limestone panels bearing in relief the message "No. 4" and "1888." 
The engine door of the firehouse is located in the southern half of the Lincoln 
Street elevation and is arched with a span of about ten feet. A hood molding 
of header bricks outlines the span of the arch.

Incorporated within the body of the station at the first and second levels, but 
visually distinguished by the pilaster strips which run its full length, the 
tower is free-standing on the second and third levels. Above the third level is 
a wooden obeservation platform supported by a pair of large wrought-iron angle 
irons on each side. Cast-iron cresting serves as a railing for this platform. 
Under the eaves of the pointed hipped roof are small brackets of corbelled brick. 
On the Barker and Lincoln Street elevations a bull's-eye window pushes into the 
corbelled cornice. On the south elevation a small round-headed door also pushes 
into the belt course.

The interior is not significant to the nomination.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Number 4 Engine House is an important landmark in Racine. It possesses architectural 
significance as an interesting High Victorian Italianate building in an excellent 
state of preservation. It possesses historical significance as an intact example of 
a late-nineteenth-century ward firehouse, an ordinary but nonetheless significant 
type of a building. The architecture and striking appearance of the firehouse, combined 
with the important role it played in its neighborhood while it housed Engine Company 
Number 4, makes this building a key landmark in the northside of Racine.

Ever since its construction in 1888 the firehouse, with its four-story Italianate 
tower, has stood sentinel over the small brick and frame workers' cottages of the 
Northside, providing a strong visual focus for the neighborhood. The firehouse 
is stylistically interesting, but unlike many High Victorian Italianate structures, 
it gains its attractiveness from its design clarity and good proportions rather 
than from applied ornament, of which it has only a small amount.

In 1882, a major fire consumed more than forty buildings in Racine and helped lead 
the city fathers to devote substantial resources for the improvement of Racine's 
fire-fighting capabilities. In 1883 the city abolished its volunteer fire brigades, 
replacing them with all-professional companies. Engine Company Number 4 was assigned 
a new steam-powered pumper in 1885. The quality of Engine House Number 4 reflects 
Racine's concern for fire protection during this period.

On December 19, 1887, the Common Council approved the purchase of a site for the 
"hose house" in the Fourth Ward on the corner of Lincoln and Barker Streets, then 
being offered for $300. The City Engineer and Fire Committee were requested to 
prepare plans and specifications for a brick engine house on January 9, 1888, said 
engine house to be about 20 x 60 feet and two stories high. A week later City 
Engineer W. F. Goodhue presented the council with appropriate plans, which he 
estimated could be carried out for $3,200.

Low bid on the structure was $2,465, submitted by Hannibal Lugg, an immigrant builder 
from Cornwall, England. Lugg's bid was accepted on May 7, and in the summer of 1888 
he erected the engine house with Peter Beffel, a Northside contractor and builder.

The new firehouse replaced a frame building at the south end of the park containing 
the Fourth Ward (now Jones) School. The new building served the city until 1926 
when a bungalow-type station was built at Marquette and Kewaunee Streets.
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Item 8; SIGNIFICANCE, continued;

Today the building houses a glass company, but it has lost little of the appearance 
it had when it housed Engine Company Number 4. It remains the striking visual 
landmark it was when it was built in 1888.

1. Minutes of the Common Council and autobiography of the builder.
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